CuAP. v.] RIVER AVON.—BRISTOL. 139

RIVER AVON has its rise near Tetbury on the borders of Wilt-
shire, and Gloucestershire, passes Malmesbury, Chippenham, and Bradford,
where, besidea other tributaries, it receives the Frome from the south ; it
flows by the north of Bath and Xeynsham, receiving at the latter town the
Chew from the gouth-west, and dividing the counties of Somerset and
Gloucester, arrives at the city and port of Bristol. Here the river passes
through an artificial cut sonth of its original bed, which was converted into
a floating harbour ; it resames its old channel at the Hotwells, running
between the steep cliff of St. Vincent’s rock, and with one sharp bend
near Shirehampton, joins the Severn 1} miles above Portishead, the total
length from its source to Bristol being 74 miles. From the entrance of
Cumberland dock to the mouth of the river the distance is 63 miles. The
course was formefly round eastward of Dumball island, but that channel no
longer exists, and the present outlet is now the shorter one westward of it,
where between the points at high water it is less than a third of a mile in
width, and at low-water the depth is from a quarter to half a fathom. From
the entrance to Fill there is a channel depth at high-water ordinary springs
of 40 feet, and at neaps 31 feet, decreasing to 33 feet at Cumberland basin
entrance, and to Bathurst basin 22 feet ; beyond which the Avon is navi-
gable for barges to Notham dam, 2} miles, the tide flowing to Hanham
mills, 5 miles above the basin.

BRISTOL.—The city of Bristol, situated upon the right bank of the
Avon, is bonnded on either side by Gloucestershire arid Somersetshire, and
is of ancient date and importance. It stands on very irregular ground,
Brandon hill elevated 259 feet; Clifton, a western suburb, above 300 feet.
The river or New cut is crossed by one rsilway and three road bridges,
including the suspension bridge across the St. Vincent rocks at Clifton, the
span of which is 637 feet, and the roadway elevated 545 feet above high
water ; this remarkable structure was opened in 1864.

Harbour and Dock Accommodation,—Asbefore mentioned
the ancient bed of the river was converted into a floating harbour, which
included also a portion of the Frome, which enters the city from the north-
esat ; it is supplied by water from the river Avon by a canal or feeder
above the dam at Nootham, and was opened for shipping in 1809. The
New or compensting cut extends from Marsh bridge to the Rownham ferry,
near the Hotwells, a distance of 2 miles, and where the river is 200 feet in
width. The floating harbour is very circuitous, is crossed by several
bridges, and about the centre is connected with the cut by the Bathurst
basin. The public and private quay accommodation is very extensive,
amounting to 9,000 feet of the first and 14,000 feet of the latter. There
is in the harbour & patent slip for small vessels, five graving docks,
and besides the Cumberland basin, a small floating dock at the north




140 BRISTOL CHANNEL. [caar. v.

side of the west end of the harbour. The principal dimensions are as
follows :—

Depth over 8ill,
Year | Length | Breadth
Name, opened.] in Feet. | in Peet. Area. lm
Springs. | Neape.
A. BR. P.
Cumberiaad basin - | 1808 633 800 4+ 30 28 — Lo
Junetion Jock -1 1871 350 60 — —_ 35" 19
L - 266 54 — —_ 52 16
Ses locks } — | 350 62 - — |85 | 19
Floating harbour - | — | 5,400 255 |63 2 0| 2306l in the feeder.
Baﬂmrlt besm - | — 430 210 2 00 18 —_ —
-l - 155 36} — — | es- i
moadngdoek -l - — — 2 0 0| 16 — —
Gramug dacks,
- - — 875 43 —_ - 148 —_
Iune kiln . =) - 145 34 —_ — 13- —
Queen’s dock = — 300 45 — — 14 -—
Great Wester - | — 30¢ 48 —_ —_ 126 s
Tucker's doek - - 140 30 — —_ 106 S

Avonmouth Docks.—The Avonmouth dock was opened in 1877,
it is pituated at tke month of the river Avon, 1,000 yards from the safe and
extensive anchorage of King road. The approach to the lock forms a tidal
basin 350 yards in length, of an average width of 70 yards, with a depth
of 40 feet at ordinary spring tides. The lock is 454 feet long and 70 feet
wide, with a depth over the sills of 38 feet at ordinary spring tides, and of
26 feet ot ordinary neap tides. The dock is 1,400 feet in length, with an
uniform width of 500 feet, thus affording great facilities for swinging
ships. There is an area of 16 acres, and the depth of water maintained
will be 26 feet. The eastern quay is furnished with one travelling hydraulic
and four hydraulic cranes, each eapable of lifting 85 cwt.; on the western
quay there is a 15-ton hydraulic crane for the parpose of lifting machinery
and other heavy goods, also one 5-ton and two 3-ton portable cranes, all of
them adapted for loading or discharging goods with the utmost dispatch,
and there is direct communication with the whole of the railway systems
of the kingdom. The Great Western and Anchor line steam vessels run
between New York and this dock.*

The manufactories and commerce of Bristol are extensive. Of the
former the most important are those of brass, copper, zinc, lead, soap, and
shot. There are also iron foundries and sugar refineries. Coal is procured

* Vensela of 3,000 tons burthen have been docked and sent; to sea, while others of
half tho aize have been lying at anchor in King road waiting for water sufficient to take

them to their port of deatination,
TL.M.8. * Aenistance,” 1879 (draught of water 18 feet), disembarked cavalry and em-

barked infantry in the docks without difficulty. Large vessels should leave and enter on
o rising tide if possible.—Captain C. E. Buckrz, R.N.
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in the vicinity, but it is not adapted for exportation. There is also some
amount of shipbuilding carried on. The inland trade is chiefly by the
Great Western, Midlnnd, Bristol and Exeter, and South Wales Union
railways. ‘There are also short lines along the north side of the river to
the pier at Avonmouth; and, branching off the Bristol and Exeter, along
the sonth bank, to Pill and Portishead.

The chief foreign imports are cotton, hemp, sugar, tobacco, rum, and
timber; and the exports, iron and general manufactures. The steam
coasting trade is between Belfast, Cork, Dublin, Glasgow, Liverpool,
Waterford, and Wexford, Padstow, Hayle, Bideford, Cardigan, and most of
the ports in the Bristol Channel. The daily steam-vessels to Cardiff and
Newport go from the river by Bathurst basin, the others from Cumberland
basin. The Cnstom House returns for 1867 were as follows :—

No. of vessels belonging to the port 366=61,281 tons. In 1875, entered
inwarde, sailing vessels 5,397, of 229,131 tons; steam vessels 2,881, of
410,254 tons; outwards, sailing vessels 2,036, of 84,416 tons; steam
vessels 2,154, of 347,333 tons. '

There is a Sailor’s home near the docks. The population of the muni-
cipal and parliamentary borough in 1871 was 182,524, which included
Bedminster and Clifton. '

Pill, or Crocker pill, is on the left bank of the Avon, across which
there is a ferry to Shirehampton. The village is chiefly inhabited by pilots
and seafaring men, and there is a small dock for building and repairing
boaiz.

New Passage.—About 5 miles above Avonmouth the Severn con-

_tracts to 1§ miles in width, across which since 1863 there has been steam
communication in connexion with the Bristol and South Wales Union rail-
way. From the east side, named the New Passage, the pier on piles pro-
jects 1,635 feet to beyond low water, and from Poriskewet, on the opposite
side, 708 feet, oxclusive of stone buttresses, From both heads a red light
is shown at night. The trains run down the piers, and goods are lowered
to the pontoon stages by lifts. There is a depth of about B feet at the east
pier head at springs; and of 16 at the west, and in the passage, which is
buoyed, the least water is about 12 feet. The chapnel up from King road,
named the Shoots, is very narrow, and contracts to 14 cables between the
English stones on the east, and the Black Bedwiuns, Mixons, and Lady
Bench on the west. Off Portskewet pier is Charstone rock, the top of
which seldom covers, and upon it is a small tower from which at night a
red light is shown which leads directly up the Shoots channel. The Dun
sands, a large central danger, lie to the east of this rock. ‘This rock is on
the tail of the low water from the Wye river entrance, 13 miles above, on
the right point of which is Chapel isle and ruin, and within, Beachley point.
Between the latter and Aust head is the old passage, less than a mile,






